
Historic Resources Board Meeting - Agenda 
December 11, 2017 

Page 1 of 2 

CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 
HISTORIC RESOURCES BOARD 

SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 
 

Monday, December 11, 2017 
3:15 p.m. Tour of Inspection 

4:00 p.m. Open Session  
 

City Hall Council Chambers 
East side of Monte Verde Street 

Between Ocean and Seventh Avenues 
 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
BOARD MEMBERS:    ERIK DYAR, CHAIR  
      KATHRYN GUALTIERI, VICE CHAIR 
      LYNN MOMBOISSE 
      THOMAS HOOD 
      ALEX HEISINGER 
 
B.  TOUR OF INSPECTION 
 
Shortly after 3:15 p.m., the Board will leave City Hall for an on-site Tour of Inspection. The public is 
welcome to follow the Historic Resources Board on its tour of the subject sites. The Board will 
return to City Hall at 4:00 p.m., or as soon thereafter as possible.  
 
C.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
D.  APPEARANCES 
 
Anyone wishing to address the Board on matters within the jurisdiction of the Board may do so now. 
Please state the matter on which you wish to speak. Matters not appearing on the Board’s agenda will 
not receive action at this meeting, but may be referred to staff for a future meeting. Presentations will 
be limited to three minutes, or as established by the Board. Persons are not required to give their 
name or address, but it is helpful for speakers to state their name in order that the Secretary may 
identify them. 
 
E.  CONSENT AGENDA 
 
1. Consideration of the minutes of October 16, 2017 Historic Resources Board Meeting. 
 
F.  ITEM 
 
1. DS 17-289  

Chris & Stacy Ratcliffe, Property Owners 
 Casanova St. 3 SW of 4th Ave 
 Block: FF; Lot(s): 29 
 APN: 010-251-024 
 

 Consideration of a Design Study (DS 17-289) 
for alterations to a historic residence located 
in the Single-Family Residential (R-1) Zoning 
District 

1



Historic Resources Board Special Meeting - Agenda 
December 11, 2017 

 

2. HE 17-422 
Carmel Properties, LLC, Property Owner 

 Dolores St. 2 SW of 5th Ave 
 Block: 55; Lot(s): 5 & 7 
 APN: 010-138-003 
 

 Historic Evaluation (HE 17-422) of a property 
located in the Service 
Commercial (SC) Zoning District. 

G.  DIRECTOR’S REPORT  
 

 
H. DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
 
I.  BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
 
J.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the Historic Resources Board regarding any 
item on this agenda will be made available for public inspection in the Planning and Building 
Department located at City Hall, on Monte Verde between Ocean and 7th Avenues during normal 
business hours. 
 
The next regular meeting of the Historic Resources Board: TBD. 
  
The City of Carmel-by-the-Sea does not discriminate against persons with disabilities. The City of 
Carmel-by-the-Sea Telecommunication’s Device for the Deaf/Speech Impaired (TDD) number is 1-
800-735-2929. 
 
The Council Chambers is equipped with a portable microphone for anyone unable to come to the 
podium. Assisted listening devices are available upon request to the Board Secretary. If you need 
assistance, please advise the Board Secretary what item you would like to comment on, and the 
microphone will be brought to you. 
 
 
AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING 

I, Marc E. Wiener, Community Planning and Building Director, for the City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, 
DO HEREBY CERTIFY, under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California, that the 
foregoing notice was posted at, the Carmel-by-the-Sea City Hall bulletin board, the Harrison 
Memorial Library at Ocean and Lincoln Avenues, and the Carmel Post Office and distributed to 
members of the media on December 8, 2017. 

Dated this 8 day of December 2017, at the hour of 9:00 a.m. 
 
 
____________________________________________________ 
Marc E. Wiener, AICP, Community Planning and Building Director 

2



MINUTES 
CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 
HISTORIC RESOURCES BOARD 

October 16, 2017 
 

City Hall Council Chambers 
East side of Monte Verde Street 

Between Ocean and Seventh Avenues 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

The meeting was called to order by Chair Erik Dyar at 4:00 p.m.  

PRESENT:  Erik Dyar, Chair  
Alex Heisinger 
Thomas Hood 
Lynn Momboisse 

 
              ABSENT:  Kathryn Gualtieri 
 

 
 STAFF PRESENT: Marnie Waffle, Senior Planner  

Cortina Whitmore, Historic Resources Board Secretary  
 

B. TOUR OF INSPECTION  
 Tour of Inspection convened at 3:30 p.m.  
 
C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 Members of the audience joined the Board in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
D.  APPEARANCES  

 
N/A 
 

E. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1. Consideration of the minutes of the August 21, 2017 Historic Resources Board 
Meeting. 
 
Board Member Momboisse moved to approve the minutes of the August 21, 2017 
Historic Resources Meeting. Motion seconded by Board Member Hood and carried the 
following vote: 3-0-1-1. 
 
AYES:                COMMISSIONERS: MOMBOISSE, HOOD & DYAR 
NOES:               COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSENT:           COMMISSIONERS: GUALTIERI 

3



ABSTAIN:          COMMISSIONERS: HEISINGER 
 

G. ITEM 
 

      1. MA 17-213 (Markowski) 
       Sandra Markowski, Owner 
       NW corner of Santa Rita & Ocean Ave.  
       Block: 66; Lots: 2, 3 & 4 
       APN: 010-039-007              

 Consideration of a recommendation to the 
City Council to approve a Mills Act Contract 
(MA 17-213) for an existing historic residence 
located in the Single Family Residential (R-1) 
Zoning District. 

 
Board Member Momboisse recused from Item #1, MA 17-213 (Markowski). 
 
Marnie Waffle, Senior Planner provided property history and presented the staff report. 
Ms. Waffle answered questions from the Board.  
 
Chair Dyar opened the public hearing. 
 
Speaker #1: Sandra Markowski, Property owner provided further maintenance plan 
clarification and answered questions from the Board.  
  
Chair Dyar closed the public hearing. 
 
The Board held discussion and provided the applicant direction.   

Board Member Heisinger moved to approve MA 17-213 (Markowski) with the revised 
maintenance plan and to recommend the City Council approve the Mills Act Contract. 
Motion seconded by Board Member Hood and carried by the following roll call vote: 
3-0-1-1. 
 
AYES:                COMMISSIONERS: HEISINGER, HOOD & DYAR  
NOES:               COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSENT:           COMMISSIONERS: GUALTIERI 
ABSTAIN:         COMMISSIONERS: MOMBOISSE 
 

      2. DR 17-221/HE 17-268 (Simon)  
       CVI Investors, LLC, Property owner  
       NE corner of Junipero & Ocean Ave.  
       Block: 68; Lots: 5-10 
       APN: 010-094-002               

 Consideration of adding the Carmel Village 
Inn to the Historic Inventory and 
determination of consistency with the 
Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for the 
Treatment of Historic Properties for 
modification to the Carmel village Inn located 
in the Residential and Limited Commercial 
(RC) Zoning District.  

4



Board Member Momboisse recused from Item #2; DR 17-221/HE 17-268 (Simon).  
 
Marnie Waffle, Senior Planner presented the staff report and noted staff is in 
disagreement with Kent Seavy, City Historian’s recommendation to add the Carmel 
Village Inn to the Historic Inventory.  Ms. Waffle informed the Board of the need for two 
votes: 

1. Consideration of adding the Carmel Village Inn to the Historic Inventory. 
2. Determination of consistency with the Secretary of the Interior’s 

Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties for modification to 
the Carmel Village Inn.  

 
Chair Dyar opened the public hearings.  
 
Speaker #1: Arron Simon, Applicant noted his support of staff report and 
recommendations.  
 
Speaker #2: Kent Seavy, Historic Preservation Consultant provided explanation for his 
findings and noted Jim Pruitt as a significant planner with Comstock Associates and a 
number of post-adobe buildings in Monterey County.    
 
Speaker #3: Paul Davis, Project Architect added the proposed changes are appropriate 
regardless of the historic status.  
 
Chair Dyar closed the public hearing.  
 
Board Member Hood moved to add the Carmel Village Inn to the City’s Historic 
Inventory. The motion was seconded by Board Member Gualtieri and carried by the 
following roll call vote: 2-1-1-1. 
 
AYES:                COMMISSIONERS: HOOD & HEISINGER  
NOES:               COMMISSIONERS: DYAR 
ABSENT:           COMMISSIONERS: GUALTIERI  
ABSTAIN:         COMMISSIONERS:  MOMBOISSE  
 
Marine Waffle presented the staff report for DR 17-221 (Simon). MS. Waffle 
summarized the proposed Carmel Village Inn alterations and noted the proposed 
changes are consistent with the Secretary of Interior Standards.  
 
Chair Dyar opened the public hearing.  
 
Speaker #1: Arron Simon informed the Board of his commitment to the maintenance of 
the Carmel Village Inn.  
 
Speaker #2: Paul Davis, Architect provided further design details.  
 

5



Speaker #3: Kent Seavey, Historic Preservation Consultant provided recommendation 
and was available for questions. 
 
Chair Dyar closed the public hearing.  
 
The Board continued discussion and provided recommendations.  
 
Board Member Hood moved to Issue a Determination of Consistency with the 
Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for DR 17-221/HE 17-268 (Carmel Village Inn). The 
motion was seconded by Board Member Heisinger and carried by the following roll 
call vote: 3-0-1-1 
  
AYES:                COMMISSIONERS: HOOD, HEISINGER & DYAR  
NOES:               COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSENT:           COMMISSIONERS: GUALTIERI  
ABSTAIN:         COMMISSIONERS:  MOMBOISSE  
 

G.  DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
Planning Director, Mr. Wiener discussed the meeting with the Historic Context subcommittee 
and noted the opportunity to update the Historic Context Statement. Mr. Wiener provided the 
Historic Resources Board with a draft version of the Request for Proposals (RFP) to allow the 
Board to review and provide comments. Mr. Wiener informed the Board of upcoming Board 
training opportunities and provided an ADU Ordinance update.  

 
H. DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 

1. SB 1069 (ADU Legislation) Impact on Historic Preservation 
2. Discussion of Context Statement Update.   

 
Mr. Wiener provided a recap of City Council activity. The Board discussed the update of 
the Context Statement.  
 

I.  BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS 
Board Member Momboisse provided the Board with a Handout. Board Member Hood 
announced an exhibit at the Murphy House.  
 

J. ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting was adjourned 
at 5:58 p.m. 
 
_____________________________________________ 
Cortina Whitmore, Historic Resources Board Secretary  
 

 

6



 ATTEST: 
 
 _____________________________________________ 
 Erik Dyar, Chair 

7



 
CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 

 
Historic Resources Board 

 
December 11, 2017 

 
To:   Chair Goodhue and Planning Commissioners 
 
From:   Marc Wiener, AICP, Community Planning and Building Director 
 
Submitted by: Marnie R. Waffle, Senior Planner 
 
Subject:  Consideration of a Design Study (DS 17-289) for alterations to a historic 

residence located in the Single-Family Residential (R-1) Zoning District 
 
 
Application: DS 17-289 APN: 010-251-024  
Location: Casanova 3 SW of 4th   
Block: FF Lot: 29 
Applicant: Rod Mesquit Property Owner: Chris & Stacy Ratcliffe 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The applicant is proposing to construct a new, two-and-one-half-story staircase (74 square feet) 
to provide internal access to all floors of the existing residence; expand an existing second story 
deck by 112 square feet; add two new roof dormers; and, remove an existing skylight. All 
exterior modifications are proposed on the rear elevation of a historic residence known as the 
‘Collis House’. The original bungalow was a duplex designed and constructed by M.J. Murphy. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Historic Resources Board issue a Determination of Consistency with 
the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The existing residence is a circa 1913 two-story, wood-framed Craftsman Bungalow known as 
the ‘Collis House'. The property is listed at the local level of significance, under California 
Register Criteria 3, in the area of architecture as the first recorded residential duplex in Carmel. 
It is also significant as an early example of a building designed by Carmel master-builder 
Michael J. Murphy. The resource is representative of the theme of Architectural Development 
in Carmel (1888-1965) as set forth in the 2008 Carmel Historic Context Statement. A State of 
California DPR 523A form was prepared for the ‘Collis House’ in 2002 by Historic Preservation 
Consultant Kent L. Seavy (Attachment B). 
 
 

8



 
DS 17-289 (Ratcliffe) 
December 11, 2017 
Staff Report 
Page 2 of 3 
 
The existing two-story residence is rectangular in plan and rests on a concrete foundation. The 
exterior wall cladding is a combination of wide, horizontal shiplap siding on the first floor and 
vertical board and batten on the second floor. The low pitched gabled roof is covered in wood 
shingles and is characterized by a series of elongated shaped purlins which extend to create a 
flat roofed pergola on the north elevation. There are three slightly projecting window bays, one 
on the north elevation and two on the west elevation, that are capped by narrow shed roofs 
with wood shingles. Fenestration is irregular with a combination of multi-paned fixed and wood 
casement windows, all in the Craftsman style. The Bungalow is built into a steeply rising slope 
on the south side of 4th Avenue. Originally the first floor was accessed from 4th Avenue while 
the second floor was accessed from Casanova. The residence has been little altered since the 
time of construction. In 1974 a retaining wall, finished with Carmel stone veneer, was 
constructed along Casanova for parking. The retaining wall and parking pad are currently being 
reconstructed. According to the project plans prepared by Rod Mesquite, the first floor is 1,196 
square feet and the second floor is 1,034 square feet. The total square footage is 2,230 square 
feet. 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
The applicant is proposing to construct a two-and-one-half story enclosed staircase about 
midway on the west (rear) elevation. Two existing windows, one at the first floor and the other 
at the second floor, would be removed and relocated to the west elevation of the staircase 
addition. The staircase addition would also include three new windows, two on the north 
elevation (one at the first floor and the other at the second floor) and one on the south 
elevation at the second floor. An existing deck at the south end of the west elevation would be 
expanded by 112 square feet. Two new shed roof dormers are proposed on the rear (west) roof 
plane. An existing skylight on the front (east) roof plane is propose to be removed. 
 
STAFF ANALYSIS 
 
Historic Evaluation Summary: The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) requires 
environmental review for alterations to historic resources that are not consistent with the 
Secretary of the Interior’s Standards. The proposed alterations were reviewed by the City’s 
Historic Preservation Consultant and a Phase II Historic Assessment was prepared. The 
Assessment includes an analysis of the proposed changes based on the Secretary of the 
Interior’s Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties (Attachment C). The Assessment 
concludes that the project, as shown on the project plans stamped received on November 16, 
2017, would not cause a significant change to the listed historic building and would not create a 
significant adverse effect on the environment. Therefore, the project would be consistent with 
the Secretary of Interior's Standards. 
 
Secretary of the Interior’s Standards: The Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for the 
Treatment of Historic Properties identify four primary treatment approaches to historic 
buildings: Restoration, Preservation, Reconstruction and Rehabilitation. Rehabilitation is the 
recommended standard of treatment for this project. Rehabilitation is defined as the act or 
process of making a compatible use for a property through repair, alterations and additions 

9



 
DS 17-289 (Ratcliffe) 
December 11, 2017 
Staff Report 
Page 3 of 3 
 
while preserving those portions of features which convey it’s historical, cultural, or architectural 
values. Based on the Phase II Historic Assessment prepared by Historic Preservation Consultant 
Mr. Kent Seavey, the project is consistent with the Secretary’s Standards for Rehabilitation. The 
proposed addition and exterior modifications will be at the rear of the residence and will not 
impact the primary elevation.  
 
Standard #9 states, “New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction will not 
destroy historic materials, features and spatial relationships that characterize the property. The 
new work shall be differentiated from the old and will be compatible with the historic materials, 
features, size, scale and proportion, and massing to protect the integrity of the property and its 
environment.” The exterior wall cladding of the staircase addition would be differentiated from 
the existing wall cladding through the use of flat horizontal wood siding at the first floor and 1-
inch wider vertical battens at the second floor. Alternatively, the applicant is proposing a board 
over board option at the second floor with outer boards spaced the same distance as the width 
of the existing battens. The modified wall cladding would also be used on the sides of the new 
roof dormers and for the extended deck railing. The roofing material for the staircase addition 
and the new roof dormers is proposed to be copper. The three new windows on the north and 
south elevations of the staircase addition would have a different muntins pattern to distinguish 
original from new. 
 
Alternatives: The staff recommendation is to issue a determination that the application is 
consistent with the Secretary’s Standards. Alternatively, the Board could require modifications 
to the plans intended to make the exterior modifications more compatible with the historic 
residence, in which case the application could be continued. Also, the Board could find the 
application inconsistent with the Secretary’s Standards, which would result in either the 
applicant withdrawing the project, or require additional CEQA analysis to evaluate impacts on 
historic resources. 
 
Environmental Review: The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) requires 
environmental review for alterations to historic resources that are not consistent with the 
Secretary of the Interior’s Standards. If the alterations are deemed consistent with the 
Standards, potential historic resource impacts under CEQA do not require further analysis. Staff 
recommends that the proposed alterations be found consistent with the Secretary of the 
Interior’s Standards and therefore, additional environmental analysis would not be required. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• Attachment A – Conditions of Approval 
• Attachment B – DPR 523A Form for ‘Collis House’ 
• Attachment C – Phase II Historic Assessment 
• Attachment D – Secretary of the Interior’s Standards 
• Attachment E – Project Plans 

10



 
 

CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY PLANNING AND BUILDING 
 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 

DS 17-289 (Ratcliffe) 
Casanova 3 SW of 4th  
Block: FF; Lot: 29 
APN: 010-251-024 
 
AUTHORIZATION:  
 
1. This Determination of Consistency for DS 17-289 (Ratcliffe) authorizes the construction 

of a new, two-and-one-half-story staircase (74 square feet) to provide internal access to 
all floors of the existing residence; expansion of an existing second story deck by 112 
square feet; the addition two new roof dormers; and, the removal of an existing 
skylight. All work shall conform to the plans dated received November 16, 2017 except 
as modified by the special conditions below and shall conform to the Secretary of the 
Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation. 

 
SPECIAL CONDITIONS:  
 
2. The horizontal flat wood siding and vertical board & battens on the staircase addition, 

new roof dormers and extended deck railing shall be differentiated from existing 
materials on the historic residence as specified on the approved plans. 
 

3. The two existing windows on the west elevation at the new staircase addition shall be 
reused in their approximate original locations on the new staircase addition. 
 

4. On the construction drawings, the applicant shall identify the dimensions of existing 
historic windows and new windows, including the muntins pattern, to ensure that the 
new windows are properly differentiated.  

 
5. Prior to the beginning of construction, the applicant shall convene a pre-construction 

meeting to include the contractor and the City’s Project Planner to ensure compliance 
with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties. A 
Building Permit will not be issued until this meeting has occurred. 
 

6. Trees shall be protected during construction by methods approved by the City Forester. 
All foundations within 15 feet of significant trees shall be excavated by hand. If any tree 
roots larger than two inches (2”) are encountered during construction, the City Forester 
shall be contacted before cutting the roots. The City Forester may require the roots to 
be bridged or may authorize the roots to be cut. If roots larger than two inches (2”) in 

11

mwiener
Typewritten Text

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment A - Conditions of Approval



 
 
DS 17-289 (Ratcliffe) 
December 11, 2017 
Conditions of Approval 
Page 2 of 2 
 

diameter are cut without prior City Forester approval or any significant tree is 
endangered as a result of construction activity, the building permit will be suspended 
and all work stopped until an investigation by the City Forester has been completed. 
Twelve inches (12”) of mulch shall be evenly spread inside the dripline of all trees prior 
to the issuance of a building permit. 

 
 
*Acknowledgement and acceptance of conditions of approval. 
 
 
 
    ___________ 
Property Owner Signature Printed Name Date 
 
 

Once signed, please return to the Community Planning & Building Department. 

12



13



14



15

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment C - Phase II Historic Assessment



16



17



18



19



20



SECRETARY OF THE INTERIOR’S STANDARDS FOR THE TREATMENT OF 
HISTORIC PROPERTIES 

 
1. “A property shall be used for its historic purpose or be placed in a new use that 

requires minimal change to the defining characteristics of the building and its site 
and environment." 

 
2. "The historic character of a property shall be retained and preserved.  The 

removal of historic materials or alteration of features and spaces that characterize 
a property shall be avoided." 

 
3. "Each property shall be recognized as a physical record of its time, place, and use.  

Changes that create a false sense of historical development, such as adding 
conjectural features or architectural elements from other buildings, shall not be 
undertaken."  

 
4. "Most properties change over time; changes that have acquired historic 

significance in their own right shall be retained and preserved."  
 
5. "Distinctive features, finishes, and construction techniques or examples of 

craftsmanship that characterize a property shall be preserved." 
 
6. "Deteriorated historic features shall be repaired rather than replaced.  Where the 

severity of deterioration requires replacement of a distinctive feature, the new 
feature shall match the old in design, color, texture, and other visual qualities and, 
where possible, materials.  Replacement of missing features shall be substantiated 
by documentary, physical, and pictorial evidence." 

 
7. "Chemical or physical treatments, such as sandblasting, that cause damage to 

historic materials shall not be used.  The surface cleaning of structures, if 
appropriate, shall be undertaken using the gentlest means possible." 

 
8. "Significant archeological resources affected by a project shall be protected and 

preserved.  If such resources must be disturbed, mitigation measures shall be 
undertaken. 

 
9. "New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction shall not destroy 

historic materials that characterize the property.  The new work shall be 
differentiated from the old and be compatible with the massing, size, scale, and 
architectural features to protect the historic integrity of the property and its 
environment." 

 
10.  "New additions and adjacent or related new construction shall be undertaken in 

such a manner that if removed in the future, the essential form and integrity of the 
historic property and its environment would be unimpaired." 

 

21

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment D - Secretary of the Interior's Standards



22



23



24



25



26



27



CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 
 

Historic Resources Board 
 

December 11, 2017 
 

 
To: Vice-Chair Gualtieri and Board Members 
 
From: Marc Wiener, AICP, Community Planning and Building Director 
 
Subject:  Historic Evaluation (HE 17-422) of a property located in the Service 

Commercial (SC) Zoning District. 
 
 
Application: HE 17-422 APN: 010-138-003 
Location: Dolores 2 SW of 5th Avenue  
Block:  55 Lot(s): 5 & 7 
Applicant:  Robert Leidig Property Owner: Carmel Properties, LLC 
 
RECCOMENATION 
Issue of a Determination of Historic Ineligibility to the subject property. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The subject property is located on Dolores Street, 2 SW of 5th Avenue, and is developed with a 
one-story Post-Adobe commercial building named the Los Cortes Building.  The Los Cortes 
Building was designed by noted architect William Cranston and was constructed in 1952. The 
rear of the building was modified in the late 70s.  There is a parking lot at the rear of the site 
and the building is well under the allowed height and floor area for this site.  The property 
owner, Robert Leidig, has indicated the intent to redevelop the site with a new mixed-use 
building. 
 
In 2015, the property was under different ownership and an application was submitted to 
conduct a historic evaluation of the site. Historic Preservation Consultant, Kent Seavey, 
conducted an intensive survey and drafted a DPR 523 Form recommending that the building be 
added to the City’s Historic Inventory under California Register criterion 3, in the area of 
architecture, as a very good example of the commercial design by architect William Cranston 
and for its employment of the Post-Adobe construction method.  At the property owner’s 
request, the decision on adding the building to the inventory was postponed.   
 
Mr. Leidig has requested that the decision on adding the building to the Historic Inventory be 
referred to the Historic Resources Board and has hired Historic Preservation Consultant, 
Anthony Kirk, Ph.D., to conduct a separate intensive survey.  Mr. Kirk has drafted a report 
recommending that the building not be added to the City’s Historic Inventory.  Staff concurs 

28



HE 17-422 (Carmel Properties, LLC) 
December 11, 2017 
Staff Report  
Page 2  
 
with Mr. Kirk and recommends that a Determination of Historic Ineligibility be issued to the 
property. 
 
STAFF ANALYSIS 
 
Review Process 
CMC Section 17.32.040 (Eligibility Criteria for the Carmel Inventory) states that the Director and 
the HRB, based on recommendations of qualified professionals, shall use certain criteria in 
making determinations of eligibility of properties for the City’s Historic Inventory. Below is a 
summary of the four eligibility criteria that must be met in order for the property to qualify as 
historically significant, followed by an analysis by staff: 
 
Criteria A.  Should be representative of at least one theme included in the Historic Context  
  Statement.  
 
Staff Analysis: In his analysis, Mr. Seavy states that the Los Cortes Building is “significant as a 
good example of Post-Adobe construction.” Section 5.4 of the Historic Context Statement lists 
several types of architectural styles important to Carmel’s development such as Craftsman, 
European Revival, Minimalist Traditional and Bay Region. The Historic Context Statement 
references Hugh Comstock’s Tudor-style fairy-tale cottages as a prominent type of architecture. 
The Context Statement notes that the Post-Adobe method of construction was developed by 
Hugh Comstock, but it is not identified as being important in the City’s development.  
Furthermore, staff concurs with Mr. Kirk who correctly points out that Post-Adobe is a 
construction method and not an architectural style.  In staff’s opinion, the style of Los Cortes 
Building is not representative of a significant theme of development in the City.  
 
Criteria B.  Shall retain substantial integrity. 
 
Staff Analysis: While the front elevation is generally unaltered, there have been numerous 
alterations to the rear of the building as identified by Mr. Kirk. Most notable is the 1977 
addition of a flat-roof element at the rear of the building, which is partially visible from the 
street.      
 
Criteria C. Should be a minimum of 50 years of age.  
 

1. Is associated with events that have made a significant contribution to the broad 
patterns of local or regional history or the cultural heritage of California or the United 
States; 
 

2. Is associated with the lives of persons important to local, California or national history; 
 

29



HE 17-422 (Carmel Properties, LLC) 
December 11, 2017 
Staff Report  
Page 3  
 

3. Embodies the distinctive characteristics of a type, period, region, or method of 
construction, or represents the work of a master, an important creative individual, or 
possesses high artistic values; or 
 

4. Has yielded, or has the potential to yield, information important to the prehistory or 
history of the local area, California or the nation. 

 
Staff Analysis:  The Los Cortes Building was built in 1952 and meets the 50 year age 
requirement.  However, the building does not meet any of the subsections identified under 
Criteria C.  As stated by Mr. Kirk, the property is not associated with events that have made a 
significant contribution to the broad patterns of national, state, or local history; nor does it 
have a meaningful association with an individual who was significant in the history of the 
United States, California, or Carmel-by-the-Sea. 
 
Criteria D.  To qualify for the Carmel Inventory, a historic resource eligible under California 

Register Criteria No. 3 (subsection (C)(3) of this section) only, should:  
 

1. Have been designed and/or constructed by an architect, designer/builder or 
contractor whose work has contributed to the unique sense of time and place 
recognized as significant in the Historic Context Statement; or 
 

2. Have been designed and/or constructed by a previously unrecognized architect, 
designer/builder or contractor if there is substantial, factual evidence that the 
architect, designer/builder or contractor contributed to one or more of the historic 
contexts of the City to an extent consistent with other architects, designer/builders or 
contractors identified within the Historic Context Statement; or 
 

3. Be a good example of an architectural style or type of construction recognized as 
significant in the Historic Context Statement; or 
  

4. Display a rare style or type for which special consideration should be given. Properties 
that display particularly rare architectural styles and vernacular/utilitarian types shall 
be given special consideration due to their particularly unusual qualities. Such rare 
examples, which contribute to diversity in the community, need not have been 
designed by known architects, designer/builders or contractors. Rather, rare styles and 
types that contribute to Carmel’s unique sense of time and place shall be deemed 
significant.  

 
Staff Analysis: The Los Cortes Building meets subsection #1, as it was designed by William 
Cranston, who is identified as a noteworthy architect in the City’s Historic Context Statement.  
However, in staff’s opinion it does not meet the other subsections.  With regard to subsections 
#3 and #4, the construction method is not rare and there are other better examples of Post-

30



HE 17-422 (Carmel Properties, LLC) 
December 11, 2017 
Staff Report  
Page 4  
 
Adobe construction in the City such as the L.L. Spillers Guest Cottage designed by William 
Cranston, the Carmel Village Inn, which was recently added to the City’s Historic Inventory, and 
the Village Corner Restaurant Building (Attachment C – Photographs).   
 
As stated in the Kirk report, Mr. Seavey provides no information on why the Los Cortes Building 
is a good example of Post-Adobe construction. Furthermore, Mr. Kirk takes issue with Mr. 
Seavey’s statement that the subject building is “an excellent example of post WWII and Korean 
design in Carmel.”  In Mr. Kirk’s opinion, there is nothing modernistic about the building, except 
the use of aluminum sash windows, and that use of adobe blocks is “antithetical to the very 
essence of mid-century modernism.”  Staff concurs with Mr. Kirk’s assessment on this matter.    
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• Attachment A – Kent Seavey Intensive Survey (DPR 523) 
• Attachment B – Anthony Kirk Intensive Survey 
• Attachment C – Photographs of other Post-Adobe Buildings 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

31



32

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment A - Kent Seavey Intensive Survey



33



34



35

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment B - Anthony Kirk Intensive Survey



36



37



38



Attachment C – Photographs of other Post Adobe Buildings 

 

Carmel Village Inn 

 

 

Village Corner Inn 

 

 

39



 

L.L. Spillers Guest House 

40


	SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA
	A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
	B.  TOUR OF INSPECTION
	C.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	D.  APPEARANCES
	E.  CONSENT AGENDA
	J.  ADJOURNMENT


	DS 17-289 (Ratcliffe) - Packet.pdf
	DS 17-289 (Ratcliffe) - Attach A - Conditions of Approval.pdf
	CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA
	DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY PLANNING AND BUILDING
	CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL
	DS 17-289 (Ratcliffe)





